
 
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
January 29, 2026 

 
Open to the public 

9:00 AM Garfield Township Hall – Upstairs Main Hall 
3848 Veterans Dr, Traverse City, MI 49684 

                                                                                                                                                           
Persons with disabilities which the foregoing opportunities for participation will not address should 
contact Darcey Gratton at (231) 932-3010 or dgratton@gtpavilions.org with questions or concerns.   

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. ROLL CALL  
 

3. FIRST PUBLIC COMMENT 
Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of 
Health and Human Services Board which is required to be open to the public under the provisions 
of the Michigan Open Meetings Act, as amended.  (MCLA 15.261, et.seq.)  Public comment shall 
be carried out in accordance with the following Board Rules and Procedures: 

1. Any person wishing to address the Board shall state his or her name and address. 
2. Persons may address the Board on matters which are relevant to Grand Traverse 

Pavilions issues. 
3. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter, excluding time 

needed to answer Board Members questions.  The Chairperson shall control the amount 
of time each person shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed three (3) minutes. 

a) Chairperson may, at his or her discretion, extend the amount of time any person is 
allowed to speak. 

b) Whenever a group wishes to address the Board, the Chairperson may require that 
the group designate a spokesperson; the Chairperson shall control the amount of 
time the spokesperson shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed fifteen 
(15) minutes. 

 
The Board shall not comment or respond to a person who is addressing the Board.  Silence or 
non-response from the Board should not be interpreted as disinterest or disagreement by the 
Board. 
 
Please be respectful and refrain from personal or political attacks. 
 

4. COUNTY LIAISON REPORT 
 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt with by 

one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board, or staff may ask that any item on 

the consent calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for discussion.  Such 

requests will be automatically respected. 

 

 Page 1 of 75



If any item is not removed from the consent calendar, the item on the agenda is approved by a 

single Board action adopting the consent calendar. 

 

A.  Review and File           HANDOUT# 
(1)       Draft Minutes of the 12/10/25 Board Meeting    1 
(2)       Draft Minutes of the 12/10/25 Study Session Meeting   2  
(3)       December Resident Council Minutes      3 

 
7. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
8. CHAIRMAN REPORT – C. Crawford        Verbal 

 

9. FOUNDATION BOARD REPORT – None        
 

10. PACE North BOARD REPORT – None        
 

11. SERVICE EXCELLANCE AWARDS – C. Crawford      4 
    

 
12. GRAND TRAVERSE MEDICAL CARE  

 
A.  Chief Executive Officer Board Report – D. Lavender, CEO    5 

 
B.       General Information 

(1)       Director Presentation – Financial Services - Kory Hansen, CFO  Verbal 
(2)       Media Coverage – D. Lavender, CEO     6 

    
C.  Business 

(1)    November Financials – K. Hansen, CFO     7 

(2)       December Financials – K. Hansen, CFO     8 

(3)       Purchase Request – Freezer Compressor Replacement 

 – D. Lavender, CEO        9 

(4)       Purchase Request – Kubota Tractor Repair – D. Lavender, CEO  10 

(5)       Resolution 2026 - 1 - Michigan Arts and Cultural Council (MACC)  

      Grand Submission – D. Lavender, CEO     11 

(6)       Inclement Weather – C. Crawford      Verbal 

 

G.T.P. Announcements    
(1)       February 26, 2026 @ 9:00am – Regular Board Meeting 

 
13. SECOND PUBLIC COMMENT 

Refer to Rules under First Public Comment above. 
 

14. CLOSED SESSION – None 
 

15. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 2 of 75



DRAFT 

 

1 
 

GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 

1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 
 

MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 10, 2025 MEETING 

 
PRESENT: Carol Crawford, Mary Marois, Karen Griggs    Board  
  Darrell Lavender, Dave Hautamaki, Kory Hansen, Darcey Gratton Staff  
ABESENT: TJ Andrews              Commission  
GUESTS:  
         
The regular meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services 
Board was called to order at 2:00pm by Board Chair Mary Marois at Garfield Township Hall.    
 
Roll Call - Crawford – yes, Marois - yes, Griggs – yes 
 
First Public Comment – None. 
 
County Liaison Report – None.  
 
Approval of Agenda – Chair Crawford asked if there were additions, changes or corrections to 
the agenda. The board acknowledged that the November financials were purposely not included 
on the agenda due to the meeting being scheduled earlier in the month, which did not allow 
sufficient time for completion. 
 

Motion was made by Marois to approve the agenda as presented. Seconded by Griggs 
and carried unanimously. 

 
The purpose of the Consent Calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt with 
by one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board or staff may ask that any 
item on the Consent Calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for discussion.  
Such requests will be automatically respected.  

 
REVIEW AND FILE  

(1)       Draft Minutes of the 11/24/25 Board Meeting 
(2)       Closed Minutes of the 11/24/25 Board Meeting  
(3)       November Resident Council Minutes 

 
Motion was made by Marois to approve the Consent Calendar as presented.  Seconded 
by Griggs and carried unanimously. 

 
Items Removed From Consent Calendar – None. 
 
Chairman Report – Crawford provided an update on the upcoming County presentation 
scheduled for December 17th. Crawford noted that Lavender, the CEO and a board member, 
will be attending and participating in the presentation. In preparation for the event, a slide deck 
has already been shared with the County for distribution and will be shared with the board. 
 
PACE North Board Report – Crawford provided an update on the PACE North Board, 
reporting that the Board met on December 8th and signed a non-binding 90-day agreement with 
a potential partner to further conversations on expanding PACE North.  

Page 3 of 75

dgratton
Text Box
1



DRAFT 

 

2 
 

 
Service Excellence Awards – Crawford reviewed September’s Service Excellence Awards. 
 
2026 Calendar for Department/Function Board Reports – Lavendar has shared a 
comprehensive plan for 2026, which includes scheduled department presentations throughout 
the year. This calendar outlines the planned dates for each department/function to present their 
updates, strategies, and progress reports to the board. 
 
BUSINESS 

 
(1) 5-year Capital Budget (2026-2030) – Hansen reviewed the details of the proposed 2026-

2030 capital budget.   
 

Motion was made by Griggs to approve the 5-year Capital budget as presented.  Motion 
seconded by Marois and carried unanimously.  Roll Call - Crawford – yes, Marois - yes, 
Griggs – yes.   

 

(2) Resolution 2025 – 6 – Foundation Trustee Appointment – Marois – Crawford reviewed 
the proposed Foundation Board of Trustee request for Mary Marois to take the place of 
Karen Griggs as the DHHS-appointed board member to the Foundation Board. 
 

Motion was made by Crawford to appoint Mary Marois as a Grand Traverse Pavilions 
Foundation Board of Trustee, as outlined in Resolution 2025-6. The motion was 
seconded by Griggs. Motion carried. 
 

(3) Request to Purchase – Floor Scrubber – Lavender has reviewed the need to purchase 
two new floor scrubbers: one compact, handheld scrubber for spot cleaning and one walk-
behind scrubber.  Three bids were received, and the recommended bid was for KSS 
Enterprises based on it being the lowest bid and relationship with manufacturer. 

 
Motion made by Marois to approve the bid from KSS Enterprises for $15,886.87 to 
purchase two floor scrubbers as presented.  Motion was seconded by Griggs and carried 
unanimously. Roll Call - Crawford – yes, Marois - yes, Griggs – yes.   
 

(4) Request to Purchase – NComputing Thin Client – Lavender has reviewed the need to 
purchase 60 NComputing thin clients to replace outdated, end-of-life devices and Windows 
10 machines that no longer receive security updates.  This investment will modernize the 
infrastructure, enhance security, and ensure reliable support for our cloud migration 
objectives.  Three bids were received, with the recommended bid from Insight Direct, based 
on their availability and the inclusion of shipping costs, which were not included in the lowest 
bid. 

 
Motion made by Crawford to approve the bid from Insight Direct for $22,056.11 to 
purchase 60NCOmputing thin clients as presented.  Motion was seconded by Griggs 
and carried unanimously. Roll Call - Crawford – yes, Marois - yes, Griggs – yes.   
 

(5) Proposed 2026 DHHS Board Schedule – The Board reviewed the proposed meeting dates 
for 2026, noting that April will be the only meeting scheduled on the 3rd Thursday of the 
month, rather than the usual 4th Thursday. Crawford also noted that the November and 
December meetings will be scheduled later in the year due to both normal meeting dates 
falling on holidays. 

Page 4 of 75



DRAFT 

 

3 
 

 
Motion was made by Marois to approve the Proposed 2026 DHHS Board Schedule as 
presented.  Motion seconded by Griggs and carried unanimously. 

 
Grand Traverse Pavilions Announcements  

(1) December 10, 2025 – Study Session: Pre-Strategic Plan @ 3:00pm  
(2) December 17, 2025 – County Commissioners Presentation @ 9:00am 

 
MEDICAL STAFF 

 
(1) Consulting Privileges - Crawford reviewed the request for Cyrus Ghaemi, DO from Sound 

Physicians, to have consulting privileges as recommended by Medical Director Dr. April 
Kurkowski, DO.   
 

Motion was made by Griggs to approve consulting privileges for Cyrus Ghaemi, DO as 
presented to the board.  Motion was seconded by Marois and carried unanimously. 

 
Second Public Comment – None 
 
Meeting adjourned at 2:28 p.m. 
 
 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Carol Crawford – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
Date: January 29, 2025 Approved 
                                   Corrected and Approved 

Page 5 of 75

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box
6



DRAFT 

 

1 
 

GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 

1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 
 

MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 10, 2025 STUDY SESSION 

 
PRESENT: Carol Crawford, Mary Marois, Karen Griggs    Board  
  Darrell Lavender, Dave Hautamaki, Darcey Gratton   Staff  
ABESENT: TJ Andrews              Commission  
GUESTS: Ann McMann, Residential Services Director 
         
The regular meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services 
Board was called to order at 3:00pm by Board Chair Mary Marois at Garfield Township Hall.    
 
Roll Call - Crawford – yes, Marois - yes, Griggs – yes 
 
First Public Comment – None. 
 
During the meeting, Lavender provided an overview of the organization’s development strategy, 
focusing on the core mission, vision, and alignment with Grand Traverse County priorities. He 
emphasized the importance of daily operations guided by clear values, building a positive 
organizational culture, and aligning efforts with a “Grand Mission” through four key strategies: 1. 
Safety & Quality, 2. Residents First, 3. Team, 4. Operational Performance. Lavender also 
outlined goal-setting methods, such as scorecards and performance reviews, as well as 
problem-solving techniques, including PDSA and A3 thinking. Communication was highlighted 
as a priority through cascading huddles, and the need for standardized work procedures to 
ensure efficiency was discussed. 
 
Additionally, Lavender and Residential Services Director Ann McMann presented an update on 
the Cottages Service Lines, covering market assessments and strategic considerations for both 
the current state and future opportunities. Immediate and long-term next steps were outlined, 
with a focus on leadership priorities and continued strategic planning efforts. 
 
Lavender shared that a strategic planning retreat is tentatively scheduled for March 2026 and 
will encompass all service lines at Grand Traverse Pavilions and asked for feedback from the 
Board on when and preferences for identifying deliverables.    
 
Second Public Comment – None 
 
Meeting adjourned at 4:26 p.m. 
 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Carol Crawford – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
Date: January 29, 2025 Approved 
                                   Corrected and Approved 

Page 6 of 75

dgratton
Text Box
2

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box
6



PAVILIONS RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
December 18, 2025 

 
The December 2025 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council was 
called to order at 11:05am in the Multi-Purpose Room by Samantha Mahon 
 
All residents were welcomed. 
 
Members present were introduced:Residents are marked “X” throughout the minutes. 
 
Birch Pavilion: 3 Residents attended. 
 
Cherry Pavilion:1 Resident attended. 
 
Dogwood Pavilion: 7 Residents attended. 
   
Staff members were introduced: 
Samantha Mahon, CTRS, Life Enrichment 
Breanna Broering, {LMSW}, Birch Pavilion Social Work 
Melanie Farmer RN, ADON – Birch Pavilion 
Lisa Tellings, Administrative Assistant - Forefront Dining Services 
Ryan Hutchins, Environmental Services Director 
Jackie – ASL Interpreter 
 
Old Business: 

There was not any old business from the previous meeting that needed to be brought 
up for discussion or to follow-up on. 
 
New Business: 

No new business to address. 
 
Outings for January 2025: 
 
January 2nd – Festival of the Trains 
Walmart shopping – TBD 
Cracker Barrell – TBD 
 
Potential trip to Hands on Art based on bus availability 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7 of 75

dgratton
Text Box
3



Special Events for January 2025: 
 
January 8th – Sue’s Zoo Visit 
January 11th – Salvation Army  
January 13th – Music with Karine 
January 14th – Let’s Talk Food 
January 15th – Resident Council 
January 20th – Music with Rebekah 
January 22nd – Bookmobile  
 

Resident Group Interview Questions: 

Samantha discussed with the attending residents that are 12 resident rights that are 
reviewed during the group interview with the State Surveyors during our annual survey, 
and today we will be reviewing Grievances. 
 
Grievances:  
• Have any of you ever voiced a complaint/grievance to the facility? How did staff react 

to this? Did they resolve the problem? 
 
No resident in attendance had submitted any grievances. No concerns noted.  
 

 
• Do you feel free to make complaints to staff? If not, why not? 

 
One resident stated, “I guess so”. Other residents had no issues, no concerns noted.  
 
 

• Is there anything else about life here in the facility that you would like to discuss? 
 
A few residents of the same pavilion brought up the call light times. ADON for that unit 
already pulled call light record and has followed up with the residents.  

 
 

1.  Discussion regarding food temperature and receiving HS snacks. 

 
One resident reported that he has lived at other facilities and this facility has the best 
and most balanced meals of the places he has lived. He then went on to say that 
this is the best facility.  
 
One resident reported she would like to see more variety of the vegetables served.  
 
Another resident reported that the beef vegetable soup she had recently was 
amazing and very well done.  
 

Page 8 of 75



 
2.  Discussion regarding the cleanliness of the facility and laundry being returned 
promptly. 

- No concerns or problems noted by any resident in attendance.  
 
 
3.  Discussion regarding room temperature. 

- One resident reported that his room is too hot even when his fan is running. A 
concern form has been submitted.  

 
 
4.  Discussion regarding nursing care. 

- No concerns or problems noted by any resident in attendance.  
 
 
5.  Discussion regarding call lights being answered in a timely manner. 

 
- A few residents of the same pavilion brought up the call light times. ADON for 

that unit already pulled call light record and has followed up with each resident.  
 
 

6.  Discussion regarding receiving showers as needed/as requested. 

- One resident reported that his showers are good. No other resident had any 
concerns.  

   
 
7. Discussion regarding the nighttime noise level on your Pavilion. 

- No concerns reported for nighttime noise level.  
 

The floor was opened for additional comments: 

- One resident had a concern about the restorative aid position being replaced 
following a retirement. A concern forms has been submitted.  

- One resident stated that if residents are not happy here then they should move 
because this is the best facility in the area. Another resident seconded that 
statement.  

- One resident reported that in the pavilion post she really liked when all the 
activities for the week were listed on one page and she would like to see that 
more often.  

 
 
 
 

Page 9 of 75



 
 

 
 

The next Pavilions Resident Council meeting will be held on January 15th at 11:00am in 
the Multi-Purpose Room. Samantha asked for a volunteer to read over and sign the 
December 2025 minutes, and X said that she would do this. The Pavilions Resident 
Council Meeting was adjourned at 11:35am by Samantha seconded by X.     
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
_______________________   
____________, CTRS     
Recreational Therapist                
 
 
_______________________ 
____________, {what Pavilion}Resident 

 

Page 10 of 75



Elm Resident Council Minutes 
Meeting Held- December 15, 2025 

 
The December meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Elm Resident Council was called to order at 
2:06pm in the Elm Common Area. 
 
Members Present were: Residents are marked “X” throughout the minutes. 
16 Residents attended. 
 
Staff Present: 
Susan Eldred, Recreation Therapist 
Naomi Rode, Assistant Director of Nursing 
Emily Tyrrell, Social Worker 
 
Old Business:  
None 
 
New Business: 
Asked the residents if they need help do the staff help them.  
X stated, “yep” and X stated, “maybe.” X and X stated, “yes.” 
 
Asked the residents if they were being offered a snack before bed.  
X stated, “usually.” 
 
Asked the residents if the staff were respectful to the residents.  
X and X stated, “yes” and X stated, “certainly.” 
 
Asked the residents if the food is good here.  
X, X, X, X and X stated, “yes.” 
 
Asked the residents if the rooms were getting cleaned.  
X, X, X, X and X stated, “yes.” 
 
Asked the residents if their clothes are getting cleaned. 
X stated, “yes they are.” X and X stated, “yes.” 
 
Asked the residents if the Temperature in the rooms is good.  
X stated, “yes definitely better.” X and X stated, “yeah.” X stated, “oh sure.” 
 
Asked the residents if they have enough to do. 
X stated, “yes” and X stated, “most of the time.” X stated, “usually.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11 of 75



Questions, Suggestions, Concerns and Comments: 
The floor was open for questions, suggestions, concerns and comments.  
 
 
Suggestions for upcoming activities: 
-Snowball Fight 
-Sewing 
-Purpose project 
-NYE celebration 
-Candy taste test 
 
 
 
Meeting was closed at 2:30pm 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
Susan Eldred, CTRS     Naomi Rode, BSN, RN       Emily Tyrrell, LLBSW                                  
 

Page 12 of 75



GRAND TRAVERSE PAVILIONS 

Service Excellence Award Program 

December 2025 

 

Employee: Sam Zeller

Awarded for:
Sam ALWAYS greets me no matter what he is doing and continually has a warm smile 
and upbeat personality!

Position: Custodian
Nominated by: Deb Thomack

 

 
 

Employee: Entire Staff of Elm

Awarded for: 

Merry Christmas and a huge THANK YOU to the staff on Elm! This job takes a special 
person to be able to do every day, and they all deserve recognition not just at Christmas 
time but everyday of the year. Thank you from the bottom of my heart does not seem 
enough. Wishing you all a joy filled Christmas full of love and best wishes for the New 
Year! 

Position: Nurses and CNA’s 
Nominated by: Deb Thomack

 

 
Employee: Jorys Allard 

Awarded for: Always having a positive attitude and jumping in to help when she sees you’re in need!

Position: CNA 
Nominated by: Amelia Davis 

Employee: Kendra Sheiffele 

Awarded for: 
Kendra sets a strong example of teamwork through her reliability, positive attitude, and 
willingness to help wherever she’s needed. 

 Position: CNA 
Nominated by: Adrian Reed 

  

Page 13 of 75

dgratton
Text Box
4



Strategy Measure Name Metric +/- Target FYTD NOTES:

Evaluate Eden Certification Achieve Completed Q3FY26

SNF Survey- Residents and families kept informed of 
care

% Positive Responses >55% Baseline is 46.36% , the lowest score with highest 
coeff to impact overall rating

Launch Cottages Resident Satisfaction Survey
Overall Satisfaction 

Score
Obtain Baseline Compare, >90% are very satisfied benchmark

Launch New Great Place to Work Survey % Engagement Score Obtain Baseline Compare, >85% benchmark

Team Retention % Staff Retention >74.4%
Michigan benchmark >70%; GTP retention 
baseline 69.4%; turnover rate of 30.6% includes 
retirements

Daily Departmental Huddles & Scorecards Implement 100%

Conduct a Safety Culture Survey % Positive Responses Obtain Baseline Compare, >90% favorable benchmark

Incident Reporting Platform Implement Completed

Receive The Joint Commission General & Memory Care 
Certification

Achieve Completed Q2FY26

Conduct 2 Mock Surveys Achieve Completed Q1, Q2 FY26

Life Safety Inspection: CMS | State Survey # Citations <7 2025 baseline is ___ citations

Health Inspection: CMS | State Survey # Citations <10 2025 baseline is 21 citations; fewer citations lead 
to an increase in 1-Star inspection rating

Increase SNF Census Total # Residents 190
Baseline is 180 as of FYE25; State Bed Plan is 85% 
of 223

Increase Cottages Occupancy Total # Residents 58
gradual increase from 58 in January to 67 in Dec 
2026; avg=64.5

Improve Combined Days Cash On Hand
$ Cash / ($Operating 

Expenses/365) >60 Baseline is 55 days; aim for 90+ days (best 
practice 120+) benchmark

Manage Expenses Total $ Expenses 3,286,381$               

Reduce Days Accounts Receivable
net $ AR / avg daily $ 

revenue <55 Baseline is 73 days; goal is <45 days 

At or better than target

Worse than target

Benchmarks reflect NRC Health, Press Ganey, Pinnacle, averages and quartiles

BOLD TEXT indicates GTP level priorities

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l P

er
fo

rm
an

ce

GTP Organizational Scorecard FY2026

Re
si

de
nt

s 
Fi

rs
t

Te
am

Q
ua

lit
y 

Sa
fe

 C
ar

e

Page 14 of 75

dgratton
Text Box
5



 
 

TO:  Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
FROM: Darrell Lavender, CEO       
RE:  December Report 
 
Census (Average Daily Census) 
 Jan-MTD Dec-25 Nov-25 Oct-25 Sept-25 Aug-25 July-25 

Medical Care 
Facility (MCF) 

189 175 182 174 180 179 179 

Cottages 60 59 58 54 54 53 54 

 
Occupancy Dec-25 Nov-25 Oct-25 Sept-25 Aug-25 July-25 

MTD Goal 85% Available beds 79% 82% 78% 91% 90% 90% 

YTD Goal 85% Licensed beds 74% 74% 74% 74% 74% 74% 

 
MCF Dec-25 Nov-25 Oct-25 Sept-25 Aug-25 July-25 

Admissions & Re-admits 62 49 64 52 60 56 

Discharges 55 57 58 56 55 55 

MMC Referrals 211 183 203 217 217 237 

MMC Denied 42 45 44 49 45 55 

Transfers to LTC 0 3 2 1 3 3 

 
Cottages Dec-25 Nov-25 Oct-25 Sept-25 Aug-25 July-25 

Admissions 3 4 2 2 6 0 

Respite 3 3 4 7 8 8 

Discharges  2 2 1 2 2 2 

 
Finance 

 Dec-25 Nov-25 Oct-25 Sept-25 Aug-25 July-25 

Combined Net Income $(100,885) $(340,406) $(153,003) $(118,653) $(6,604) $538,304 

MCF   
Net Income 

$(20,116) $(268,706) $(84,306) $(46,952) $88,504 $572,354 

Cottage  
Net Income 

$(80,769) $(71,700) $(68,697) $(71,701) $(95,108) $(34,050) 

Cash Balance $2,263,847 $3,046,210 $4,229,415 $4,422,774 $5,171,423 $5,715,117 

A/R Days Receivable 
Outstanding 

79 78 73 71 68 61 

 

MCF Operating Expenses PPD History   

 Dec-25 Nov-25 Oct-25 Sept-25 Aug-25 July-25 

MCF Operating Expenses 
Actual PPD 

510 533 520 526 $501 $507 

MCF Operating Expenses 
Budgeted PPD 

488 491 488 491 $488 $488 

Variance 
(unfavorable)/favorable 

$(22) $(42) $(32) $(35) $(13) $(19) 

 
 
 

Page 15 of 75



2 
 

Facility Reported Incidents 
 Dec-25 Nov-25 Oct-25 Sept-25 Aug-25 July-25 

Medical Care Facility 2 5 2 2 2 4 

 
Wellness Center 

Inpatient Rehab Dec-25 Nov-25 Oct-25 Sept-25 Aug-25 July-25 

Medicare A 23 15 24  24  31  32 

Medicare Advantage Skilled 45 48 50  45  37  38 

Private Insurance: Inpatient 7 9 10  7  7  10 

Private Pay: Inpatient 1 1 2  0  1  1 

Auto: Inpatient  0 0  0  0  0 

Med A/Rehab Inpatient 
Totals 

76 73 86  76  76  32 

       

Medicaid 1 1 3  3  4  4 

Medicare B: Inpatient 16 25 20  18  25  20 

Medicare B Advantage: 
Inpatient 

23 23 30  22  21  21 

Med B Inpatient Totals 40 49 53 43  50 45 

       

Medicare B: Outpatient 27 25 22  31  30  24 

Medicare B Advantage: 
Outpatient 

40 48 51  44  43  49 

Private Insurance: 
Outpatient 

19 18 22  19  20  19 

Work Compensation: 
Outpatient 

0  0  0  0  0 

Outpatient Totals 86 91 95  94  93 92 

       

Outpatient/Aquatic Center       

Aquatic inpatients therapy 
visits 

8 12 11  16  7  13 

Aquatic aftercare visits per 
month 

232 283 348  336  352  365 

Aquatic outpatient PT visits 95 150 201  193  180  201 

Aquatic group class 
participants 

76 82 128  96  102  131 

Land therapy visits (PT, OT, 
SLP) 

319 204 265  251  212  255 

Total Outpatient therapy 
visit 

414 354 466  444  392  456 

       

Outpatient aquatic therapy 
revenue 

41,686 38,352.03 50,703.07 45,693.55  42,758.73  51,416.05 

Aftercare monthly revenue 2,320 2,830 3,480  3360  3520  3,560 

Aquatic group class 
revenue 

1.520 1,640 2,560  1920  2040  2,620 

Cottages visits 127 57 61  75  58  71 

Total Wellness center 
revenue 

45,426 42,822 
 

56,743 50,974  48,319  57,686 

 
Staffing 

 Dec-25 Nov-25 Oct-25 Sept-25 Aug-25 July-25 

Hires 6 9 10 10 11 14 

Resignations  4 5 1 5 4 0 

Referrals 6 3 4 8 2 8 

Total # Employees 358 361 361 358 361 358 

January 2026 MDT # 359 employees 

  
 

Page 16 of 75



3 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 17 of 75



4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Environmental Services 
 
 
Annual pool drain and cleaning was completed. 

 
New floor scrubbers have been ordered. Expected arrival in middle of January. 

 
Started kitchen 3-hole sink area project. Cleaning, wall repairs and updated wall guards and faucets 

getting installed. Project completion in the beginning of January. 

 

Page 18 of 75



Page 19 of 75

dgratton
Text Box
6



Page 20 of 75



Page 21 of 75



Page 22 of 75



Page 23 of 75

dgratton
Text Box
7



Page 24 of 75



Page 25 of 75



Page 26 of 75



Page 27 of 75



Page 28 of 75



Page 29 of 75



Page 30 of 75



Page 31 of 75



Page 32 of 75



Page 33 of 75



Page 34 of 75



Page 35 of 75



Page 36 of 75



Page 37 of 75



Page 38 of 75



Page 39 of 75



Page 40 of 75



Page 41 of 75



Page 42 of 75



Page 43 of 75



Page 44 of 75



Page 45 of 75

dgratton
Text Box
8



Page 46 of 75



Page 47 of 75



Page 48 of 75



Page 49 of 75



Page 50 of 75



Page 51 of 75



Page 52 of 75



Page 53 of 75



Page 54 of 75



Page 55 of 75



Page 56 of 75



Page 57 of 75



Page 58 of 75



Page 59 of 75



Page 60 of 75



Page 61 of 75



Page 62 of 75



Page 63 of 75



Page 64 of 75



Page 65 of 75



Page 66 of 75



Page 67 of 75

dgratton
Text Box
9



Page 68 of 75



Page 69 of 75



Page 70 of 75

dgratton
Text Box
10



Page 71 of 75



Page 72 of 75



Page 73 of 75



Page 74 of 75



 
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 

Telephone Number: 932-3000 
 

Resolution 2026-1 
Grand Traverse Pavilions/Grand Traverse Medical Care 

 
Michigan Arts and Cultural Council (MACC) Grant Approval and Authorization for the Concert 

on the Lawn - 2026 Summer concert series 
 
WHEREAS, MACC provides Arts grants to non-profit organizations in Michigan, administered 
locally through NorthSky as the Regional Regranting Agency, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Grand Traverse Pavilions Foundation is the fund raising arm and grant seeking 
body to exclusively support the Grand Traverse Pavilions programs and services, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Grand Traverse Pavilions Foundation desires to continue presenting and hosting a 
Summer concert series held on its back lawn for the enjoyment of its residents and their families, 
employees and the general public, and   
 
WHEREAS, The Concert on the Lawn Summer concert series promotes and showcases the artistic 
talents of local vocalists and musicians for the advancement of the arts and culture to those attending, 
and  
 
WHEREAS, The Concert on the Lawn Summer concert series allows Pavilions’ frail elderly residents, 
who are often isolated, the opportunity to maintain their sense of the greater community through the 
shared experience of entertainment with the general public, and  
 
WHEREAS, The Concert on the Lawn Summer concert series provides a means to invite the general 
public onto the Grand Traverse Pavilions campus’ for exposure and education of Pavilions’ programs 
and services.  

 
THEREFORE BE IT 
RESOLVED,  

That the Grand Traverse County Department of Health & Human Services Board, on 
behalf of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Foundation, approves the grant application to be 
submitted in the amount of $20,000 from the Michigan Arts and Cultural Council (MACC) 
for funding towards the 2026 Concert on the Lawn concert series and authorizes Darrell 
Lavender, CEO (Board Secretary of the Foundation) as the official representative of the 
Organization/Board.   

 
APPROVED       ____             
DISAPPROVED ____              
 
at the January 29, 2026 meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human 
Services Board. 
 
 
 ___________________________________________________________ 
 Board Chair 
 Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
 __________________       
 Date 
 

Page 75 of 75

dgratton
Text Box
11


